# Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency Meeting Minutes Town Hall 110 Bracken Road Montgomery, NY 12549

#### January 10, 2022 1:00 PM

PRESENT: ABSENT:

Jeffrey Crist - Chairman J. Thomas Jones- Second Vice Matt Stoddard - Treasurer

John Dickson - First Vice Chairman

Robert Santo - Member George Declue - Member

Felicia Kalan - Executive Director TOMIDA

**Lauren Rowley- Secretary** 

**Billy Ibberson - Livestream Services (Acquisitions Marketing)** 

NOTE: Conference Call Line - No Calls

#### **AGENDA**

- 1. Call to Order and Declaration of Quorum
- 2. Approval of the November and December 2022 Meeting Minutes
- 3. Public Comment on Items on the Agenda
- 4. Report from Governance, Audit and Finance Committees
- 5. Annual Reorganization Resolution Discussion and Consideration for Approval
- 6. Mission Statement Discussion and Consideration for Approval
- 7. UTEP Policy Discussion
- 8. Executive Director's Report
- 9. Financial Report
- 10. Procurement Requests Discussion and Consideration for Approval
- 11. Other Business
- 12. Adjournment
- 13. Next Meeting Scheduled for February 14, 2023

#### **Meeting**

- 1 Chairman Jeff Crist began with the introduction of Board Members and other members in attendance.
- 2 Meeting minutes from the November and December meetings were approved.

(Mission Statement & Committee Reports should be added to minutes for reference).						

4- Felicia Kalan- Read the Audit Committee Memo, Governance Memo, same committee met January 10, they reviewed a proposal and would like to make a recommendation to the Board for auditing services. We reviewed PKF O Connor Davies, their services are estimated at 10,000 for auditing services. The \$10,000 estimated total is on page 12 of the proposal. The main point of contact is Jeffrey Shaver, and they specialize in this type of auditing services for public authorities and have locations throughout the Northeast. This is the official recommendation from the Auditing Committee.

Other committees that met in December were Governance Committee (Memo was read) and the Finance Committee met on December 13, report was read (Memo attached).

5- Jeffrey Crist- Annual reorganization resolution for consideration and discussion for approval covering priorities and actions that we will take, including approving officers and committees and our professional services.

Ashley Torre- the Mission Statement and UTEP Policy are not in there, let's discuss Mission Statement first.

Jeffrey Crist- let's then discuss the Mission Statement and you have a document with proposed language.

6- Felicia Kalan- Current MIDA mission statement was read, proposed mission statement "The Town of Montgomery advances the economic prosperity - add in new mission statement here

Tom Jones- I have a few comments- adding in quality of life. I don't understand the last word-recreate.

Felicia Kalan- Agritourism is the main focus, we want the Hudson Valley to be the premier place to visit.

Tom Jones- I think that would be the best word for the general public. I just wouldn't work on changing the mission statement every year, this should be something we keep consistent.

Jeffrey Crist- Let's continue with the reorganization resolution which includes all of our policies but UTEP, which we are looking at further revisions to, the attached meeting schedule for 2023,

staff appointments, officers, committees, appointment of accounting firm of PKF O'Connor Davies, appointment of our legal counsel and our bond counsel, Robert, appointment of bank, Orange Bank and Trust.

John Dickson- motion, second to motion Robert Santo. Roll Call.

(List all committee members in favor Aye Aye Aye Aye

Jeffrey Crist- All in favor, none opposed, motion carried on the Resolution.

7- Felicia Kalan- UTEP Policy Discussion we are required to annually review any changes we make to the schedule we have to notify taxing jurisdictions and have a public hearing.

# TOWN OF MONTGOMERY

## TOWN OF MONTGOMERY MONTGOMERY

#### INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 110 BRACKEN ROAD MONTGOMERY, NY 12549

### Monthly Statement 1/31/2023

PUBLIC F	<u>UND MUNI</u> (3366)		Or	ange Bank & Tru	ust	
ADD:	Checkbook Beginning Balance from last re	eport	\$	191,217.19		
CHECKS						
1783 1785 1786	Naughton & Torre LLP#30334Acquisitions Marketing2022 coverageNaughton & Torre LLP#30445		- \$	570.00 200.00 1,770.00		
	Checking Account Balance	31-Jan-23	\$	188,677.19	]	
SAILFISH	ESCROW ACCT (8008)					
ADD	Checkbook Beginning Balance		- \$	3,055.00		
CHECKS						
	Checking Account Balance	31-Jan-23	\$	3,055.00		
				CURRENT 1/31/2023	LAST REPORT 12/31/2022	CHANGE
	Orange Bank & Trust (3366)		\$	188,677.19	\$ 191,217.19	\$ (2,540.00)

3,055.00 \$

\$456,333.33 \$456,293.33

648,065.52 \$ 650,565.52 \$

3,055.00 \$

40.00

(2,500.00)

Orange Bank & Trust - Sailfish Escrow Acct (8008)-----\$

TOTAL

Orange Bank & Trust Money Market (4593)-----



#### **Executive Director Report**

This report highlights the ideas, efforts and actions taken by executive staff since the last MIDA Board meeting on 1/10/2023.

#### Key Actions:

- Worked with PKF to issue 1099s to all necessary parties for 2022
- Working on audit and PARIS reporting on an ongoing basis, all project letters have been mailed
- Launched Social Media Marketing Plan for 2022 with Acquisitions Marketing
- Finalized Email Conversion to Google with Acquisitions Marketing

#### **Business Development**

- 29 Grant Street is a Mixed Adaptive Reuse Development, and will be submitting an MIDA application.
- Confidential project related to a golf course facility
- Hawkins Drive, LLC (I-84 Logistics) would also like to apply for MIDA benefits
- Confidential project currently a speculative project has also expressed interest in pursuing MIDA benefits

#### Community Events

1/12- Orange Chamber "Meet the Candidates" Event & SUNY tour

2/6- FoodTEC conference

2/10- SOBA Wreath laying ceremony

2/10- Community Foundation Dinner

2/16- Business Council Mixer at City Winery

#### Matters to Take Note Of:

- Met with Supervisor Ron Feller to discuss potential Park projects and conference call with Ashley to discuss legal parameters.
- MIDA Bond Counsel presentation will need to be scheduled in March
- Email Conversion to GoogleSuite
- 4/27 Business Council Economic Development Summit sponsored by MIDA RFP

#### TERMINATION AND RELEASE OF EASEMENT

THIS RELEASE INSTRUMENT made the day of, 2023 between the VILLAGE OF MAYBROOK, a municipal corporation organized and existing by virtue of the laws of the State of New York with offices located at 111 Schipps Lane, Maybrook, New York ("Village"), the TOWN OF MONTGOMERY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, having offices located at 110 Bracken Road, Montgomery, New York 12549, and YELLOW FREIGHT SYSTEM, INC., an Indiana Corporation with its principal place of business at 10990 Roe Avenue, Overland Park, Kansas ("Yellow Freight").
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency and the Village of Maybrook were granted an easement over certain real estate owned by Yellow Freight System Inc. known as Section 103, Block 1, Lot 9 on the Town of Montgomery tax maps, and located in the Village of Maybrook, County of Orange, and State of New York, by instrument recorded in the Orange County Clerk's Office at Liber 2284, Page 691; and
WHEREAS, said easement is no longer required, as a new easement has been established between the Village and Yellow Freight, correcting the location of the water, sewer drainage and utility facilities, which has been recorded in the Office of the Orange County Clerk on, 2023 in Liber, Page
<b>NOW, THEREFORE,</b> in consideration of the foregoing, the Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency and the Village of Maybrook do hereby release the easement obtained by the instrument recorded in the Orange County Clerk's Office at Liber 2284, Page 691.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Termination and Release of Easement to be executed.
Yellow Freight Systems, Inc.  By: Village of Maybrook  Title:
Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency By: Title:

STATE OF	)
COUNTY OF	)ss: )
Notary Public in and for said State known to me or proved to me on the name(s) is (are) subscribed to the vexecuted the same in his/her/their	in the year 2023, before me, the undersigned, a personally appeared personally evidence to be the individual(s) whose within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they ir capacity and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the person upon behalf of which the individual(s) acted, executed
STATE OF	) )ss:
COUNTY OF	)
Notary Public in and for said State known to me or proved to me on the name(s) is (are) subscribed to the vexecuted the same in his/her/their	in the year 2023, before me, the undersigned, a personally appeared personally appeared personally evidence to be the individual(s) whose within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they ir capacity and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the person upon behalf of which the individual(s) acted, executed
STATE OF NEW YORK )	
)ss: COUNTY OF ORANGE )	
,	
to me or proved to me on the basis of is (are) subscribed to the within insthe same in his/her/their capacity a	in the year 2023, before me, the undersigned, a personally appeared DENNIS K. LEAHY personally known of satisfactory evidence to be the individual(s) whose name(s) strument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the half of which the individual(s) acted, executed the instrument.

#### TERMINATION AND RELEASE OF EASEMENT

THIS RELEASE INSTRUMENT made the day of, 2023 between the VILLAGE OF MAYBROOK, a municipal corporation organized and existing by virtue of the laws of the State of New York with offices located at 111 Schipps Lane, Maybrook, New York ("Village"), the TOWN OF MONTGOMERY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, having offices located at 110 Bracken Road, Montgomery, New York 12549, and YELLOW FREIGHT SYSTEM, INC., an Indiana Corporation with its principal place of business at 10990 Roe Avenue, Overland Park, Kansas ("Yellow Freight").
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency and the Village of Maybrook were granted an easement over certain real estate owned by Yellow Freight System Inc. known as Section 103, Block 1, Lot 9 on the Town of Montgomery tax maps, and located in the Village of Maybrook, County of Orange, and State of New York, by instrument recorded in the Orange County Clerk's Office at Liber 2284, Page 691; and
WHEREAS, said easement is no longer required, as a new easement has been established between the Village and Yellow Freight, correcting the location of the water, sewer drainage and utility facilities, which has been recorded in the Office of the Orange County Clerk on, 2023 in Liber, Page
<b>NOW, THEREFORE,</b> in consideration of the foregoing, the Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency and the Village of Maybrook do hereby release the easement obtained by the instrument recorded in the Orange County Clerk's Office at Liber 2284, Page 691.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Termination and Release of Easement to be executed.
Yellow Freight Systems, Inc.  By: Village of Maybrook  Title:
Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency By: Title:

STATE OF	)
COUNTY OF	)ss: )
Notary Public in and for said State known to me or proved to me on the name(s) is (are) subscribed to the vexecuted the same in his/her/their	in the year 2023, before me, the undersigned, a personally appeared personally evidence to be the individual(s) whose within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they ir capacity and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the person upon behalf of which the individual(s) acted, executed
STATE OF	) )ss:
COUNTY OF	)
Notary Public in and for said State known to me or proved to me on the name(s) is (are) subscribed to the vexecuted the same in his/her/their	in the year 2023, before me, the undersigned, a personally appeared personally appeared personally evidence to be the individual(s) whose within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they ir capacity and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the person upon behalf of which the individual(s) acted, executed
STATE OF NEW YORK )	
)ss: COUNTY OF ORANGE )	
,	
to me or proved to me on the basis of is (are) subscribed to the within insthe same in his/her/their capacity a	in the year 2023, before me, the undersigned, a personally appeared DENNIS K. LEAHY personally known of satisfactory evidence to be the individual(s) whose name(s) strument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the half of which the individual(s) acted, executed the instrument.

#### TOWN OF MONTGOMERY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

#### UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY

SECTION 1. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY. Pursuant to Section 874(4)(a) of Title One of Article 18-A
of the General Municipal Law (the "Act"), Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency (the
"Agency") is required to establish a uniform tax exemption policy ("Uniform Tax Exemption Policy")
applicable to the provision of any financial assistance of more than one hundred thousand dollars to any
project. This uniform tax-exemption policy was adopted pursuant to a resolution enacted by the members
of the Agency on

- SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. All words and terms used herein and defined in the Act shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Act, unless otherwise defined herein or unless the context or use indicates another meaning or intent. The following words and terms used herein shall have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context or use indicates another meaning or intent:
- (A) "Administrative Fee" shall mean a charge imposed by the Agency to an Applicant or Project occupant for the administration of a Project.
- (B) "Affected Tax Jurisdiction" shall mean, with respect to a particular Project, the Town and each Municipality or School District in which such Project is located which will fail to receive real property tax payments which would otherwise be due with respect to such Project due to a Tax Exemption obtained by reason of the involvement of the Agency in such Project.
  - (C) "Agency" shall mean the Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency.
- (D) "Agency Fee" shall mean the normal charges imposed by the Agency to an Applicant or a Project occupant to compensate the Agency for the Agency's participation in a Project. The term "Agency Fee" shall include not only the Agency's normal application fee and the Agency's normal Administrative Fee, but also may include (1) reimbursement of the Agency's expenses, (2) rent imposed by the Agency for use of the property of the Agency, and (3) other similar charges imposed by the Agency.
- (E) "Applicant" shall mean an applicant for financial assistance or a company or occupant of a Project which has been granted a Tax Exemption, as the case may be.
- (F) "Applicant Project" shall mean a project which is undertaken by the Agency for the benefit of an Applicant which either (1) has been or will be financed by the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness with respect thereto or (2) is a straight lease transaction which the Agency has determined to undertake.
  - (G) "County" shall mean Orange County, New York.
  - (H) "Municipality" shall mean each village located within the Town.
- (I) "Non-Applicant Project" means a project which is undertaken by the Agency for the benefit of the Agency and shall not include an Applicant Project.
- (J) "Pilot" or "Payment in Lieu of Tax" shall mean any payment made to the Agency or an Affected Tax Jurisdiction equal to all or a portion of the real property taxes or other taxes which would have been levied by or on behalf of an Affected Tax Jurisdiction with respect to a project but for Tax Exemption obtained by reason of the involvement of the Agency in such project, but such term shall not

include Agency Fees.

- (K) "Project" shall mean an activity which is undertaken by the Agency for the benefit of an Applicant which either (1) has been or will be financed by the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidence of indebtedness with respect thereto, or (2) is a straight lease transaction (as defined in the Act) which the Agency has determined to undertake.
  - (L) "Sales tax" or "sales taxes" shall mean sales and/or use taxes.
  - (M) "School District" shall mean each school district located within the Town.
- (N) "Tax Exemption" shall mean any financial assistance granted to a Project which is based upon all or a portion of the taxes which would otherwise be levied and assessed against a Project but for the involvement of the Agency, including but not limited to sales and use exemption, mortgage recording tax exemption and exemption from real property taxes.
  - (O) "Town" shall mean the Town of Montgomery.
- (P) "Adaptive Reuse" means the renovation and reuse of pre-existing structures for new purposes
- (Q) "Workforce Housing" means housing that is affordable to households earning 60 to 120 percent of the area median income
- (R) "New Construction" means entirely new structures or significant extensions to existing structures regardless of whether the site was previously occupied
- SECTION 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS. (A) <u>General Policy</u>. The general policy of the Agency is to grant Tax Exemption as hereinafter set forth to any Project which has been or will be (1) financed by the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidence of indebtedness with respect thereto, or (2) otherwise assisted by the Agency pursuant to a straight lease transaction.
- (B) <u>Application</u>. No request for a Tax Exemption shall be considered for approval by the Agency unless an application and environmental assessment form are filed with the Agency on the forms prescribed by the Agency. Such application shall contain the information requested by the Agency, including a description of the proposed Project, the identification of the Applicant and the occupant of the Project, a description of each Tax Exemption sought with respect to the Project, the estimated value of each Tax Exemption sought with respect to the Project, the proposed financial assistance being sought with respect to the Project, the estimated date of completion of the Project, and whether such financial assistance is consistent with this Policy.
- (C) Exceptions. The Agency reserves the right to deviate from such policy in special circumstances. In determining whether special circumstances exist to justify such a deviation, the Agency may consider the magnitude of the deviation sought and the factors which might make the project unusual, which factors might include but not be limited to the following factors: (1) the magnitude and/or importance of any permanent private sector job creation and/or retention related to the proposed project in question; (2) the impact of such project on existing and proposed businesses and/or economic development projects; (3) the amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by such project; (4) demonstrated public support for such project; (5) the estimated value of the Tax Exemptions requested; and (6) the extent to which such project will provide needed services and/or revenues to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions. In addition, the Agency may consider the other factors outlined in the Act. The process for

any deviation is set forth in this policy.

- SECTION 4. PROJECT APPROVAL POLICY. (A) Prior to the adoption of a resolution approving the grant of financial assistance for an Applicant seeking financial assistance, the following shall be accomplished:
- (1). Assessment The Agency members shall assess all material information included in connection with the application for financial assistance submitted by or on behalf of the Applicant seeking such financial assistance in order to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the Agency to provide financial assistance for a proposed project.
- (2). Cost Benefit Analysis The assessment material shall include a staff-prepared written cost-benefit analysis identifying:
  - Extent to which a Project will create or retain permanent private-sector jobs. Estimated value of tax exemptions and support.
  - Amount of private sector investment.
  - Likelihood of timely Project completion.
  - Extent of "new revenue" provided to local taxing jurisdictions.
  - Other public benefits.

The members shall consider the cost-benefit analysis as part of the assessment.

- (3). Applicant Confirmation of Compliance The Agency must receive from the Applicant a written statement that, as of the date of the application, the proposed project is in substantial compliance with all provisions of General Municipal Law Article 18-A, including but not limited to Sections 859-a and 862(1).
- (4). Notification If a proposed project involves the removal or abandonment of a facility or plant within New York State, the Agency shall notify the chief executive officer or officers of the municipality or municipalities in which the facility or plant was located. If applicable, such notice shall be sent within 10 days following the adoption of a Public Hearing Resolution.
- SECTION 5. SALES TAX EXEMPTION. (A) <u>General</u>. State law provides that purchases of tangible personal property by the Agency or by an agent of the Agency, and purchases of tangible personal property by a contractor for incorporation into or improving, maintaining, servicing or repairing real property of the Agency, are exempt from sales and use taxes imposed pursuant to Article 28 of the Tax Law. The Agency has a general policy of abating sales and use taxes applicable only to the initial acquisition, construction and/or equipping of an Applicant Project.

- (B) Exemption. The Agency has no requirement for imposing a payment in lieu of tax arising from the exemption of an Applicant Project from sales and/or use taxes applicable to the initial acquisition, construction and/or equipping of such project, except (1) as described in subsection (F) below or (2) in the circumstance where (a) an Applicant Project is offered sales and use tax exemption on the condition that a certain event (such as the issuance of bonds by the Agency with respect to the project) occur by a certain date and (b) such event does not occur, in which case the Agency may require that the Applicant make payments in lieu of sales and use taxes equal to the amount of tax which otherwise may have been due to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance.
- (C) <u>Period of Exemption</u>. Except as set forth in subsection (A) above, the period of time for which a sales and use tax exemption shall be effective (the "Tax Exemption Period") shall be determined as follows:
  - (1) <u>General</u>. Unless otherwise determined by the Agency, the sales and use tax exemption for an Applicant Project shall be for the Tax Exemption Period commencing with the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness with respect to such project, or the execution and delivery by the Agency of a lease agreement relating to such project, and ending on the date of completion of the project. The Tax Exemption Period for a Non Applicant Project shall extend for such period of time as the Agency shall determine.
  - (2) <u>Early Commencement</u>. The Tax Exemption Period for an Applicant Project may, at the discretion of the Agency, commence earlier than the date of issuance by the Agency of the Agency's bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness relating to the project, provided that (a) the Agency has complied with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act, (b) the Agency thereafter adopts a resolution determining to commence such period earlier, (c) the Applicant agrees to the conditions of such resolution and supplies to the Agency the materials required to be supplied to the Agency thereunder, and (d) the Chairperson or Executive Director of the Agency acknowledges satisfaction of all conditions to the granting of such Tax Exemption set forth in such resolution.
  - (3) Normal Termination. The Tax Exemption Period for an Applicant Project will normally end upon the completion of such project. On construction projects, the Agency and the Applicant shall agree on the estimated date of completion of the project, and the sales and use tax exemption shall cease on the earlier of (a) the actual date of completion of the project or (b) the date which is six (6) months after the estimated date of completion of such project. On non-construction projects, the Agency and the Applicant shall agree on the estimated date of completion of the project, and the sales and use tax exemption shall cease on the earlier of (a) the actual date of completion of the project or (b) the date which is three (3) months after the estimated date of completion of the project. If the Agency and the Applicant shall fail to agree on a date for completion of the project, the Agency shall on notice to the Applicant make the determination on the basis of available evidence.
  - (4) <u>Later Termination</u>. The Agency, for good cause shown, may adopt a resolution extending the period for completion of the project and/or extending the Tax Exemption Period.
- (D) <u>Items Exempted</u>. The sales and use tax exemption granted by the Agency with respect to an Applicant Project shall normally extend only to the following items acquired during the Tax Exemption Period described in subsection (B) above:
  - (1) improvements to and items incorporated into the real property.

- (2) tangible personal property, including furniture, furnishings and equipment used to initially equip the project or otherwise forming part of the project, if purchased by the Applicant as agent of the Agency;
- (3) the rental of tools and other items necessary for the construction and/or equipping of the project, if rented by the Applicant as agent of the Agency; and
- (4) office supplies, fuel and similar items consumed in the process of acquiring, constructing and/or equipping the project, if purchased by the Applicant as agent of the Agency.
- (E) <u>Items Not Exempted</u>. A sales and use tax exemption with respect to an Applicant Project shall not be granted by the Agency for the following:
  - (1) purchases occurring beyond the Tax Exemption Period described in subsection (B) above;
  - (2) repairs, replacements or renovations of the project, unless such repairs, replacements or renovations constitute major capital-type expenses approved by the Agency as a separate project in the manner contemplated by the Act; or
  - (3) operating expenses, unless such operating expenses constitute major capital-type expenses approved by the Agency as a separate project in the manner contemplated by the Act.
- (F) <u>Percentage of Exemption</u>. Unless otherwise determined by resolution of the Agency, the sales and use tax exemption shall be equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the sales and/or use taxes that would have been levied if the project were not exempt by reason of the Agency's involvement in the project. If an exemption of less than one hundred percent (100%) is determined by the Agency to be applicable to a particular Applicant Project, then the Applicant shall be required to pay a Pilot to the Agency equal to the applicable percentage of sales and/or use tax liability not being abated. The Agency shall remit such Pilot, within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof by the Agency, to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions in accordance with Section 874(3) of the Act.
- (G) Appointment of Agency Agent. The final act of granting a sales and/or use tax exemption by the Agency shall be confirmed by the execution by the appointment of the Project owner ("Owner") as Agency agent, with the authority to purchase Project-related property and services using the Agency's sales tax exemption. The Agency must file Form ST60 with the New York State Department of Tax and Finance within 30 days after the appointment. The Owner must notify the Agency of each sub-agent appointment, so the Agency can execute the required Form ST-60 for the sub-agent. Contractors and subcontractors who have not been appointed Agency agent or sub-agent cannot use the sales and tax exemption for equipment rentals, tools, supplies, and other items that do not become part of the finished Project. All Project contractors and subcontractors must be appointed as agent or sub-agent of the Agency in order to use the sales tax exemption for Project-related purchases. Owners and other properly appointed Agency agents and sub-agents claim the sales tax exemption for all purchases by giving their vendors Form ST-123. All bills, invoices and other documents for Project-related purchases by Agency agents and sub-agents should specifically indicate the purchase is made as agent of the Agency (i.e., name of purchaser is "ABC Company, as agent of the Town of Montgomery IDA"). . Such confirmation letter may either be in the form of a letter for the duration of the anticipated construction period relating to the project (where the sales and use tax exemption is permanent, because the Agency is satisfied that any conditions precedent to such sales and use tax exemption, such as the issuance of bonds or the execution of a lease agreement by the Agency, have been satisfied) or a letter having a shorter duration (where such sales and use tax exemption is tentative, because there remain conditions precedent to such sales and use tax exemption which have not

been satisfied). Each such confirmation letter shall describe the scope and term of the sales and use tax exemption being granted.

(H) <u>Required Filings</u>. The New York State Department of Taxation and Finance requires that all Agency agents and sub-agents Owner must file Form ST-340 with the Department and the Agency on or before the last day of February each year. The ST-340 reports the amount of Agency sales tax exemptions claimed for the prior calendar year. The Owner's agreements with its contractors and subcontractors should require the contractors and subcontractors to provide to the Owner the annual information regarding the amount of sales tax exemptions claimed. The project documents shall require that (1) a copy of such ST

340 report will also be filed with the Agency and (2) that the project occupant shall maintain, for a period ending seven (7) years after the last purchase made under the sales and use tax exemption, and make available to the Agency at the request of the Agency, detailed records which shall show the method of calculating the sales and use tax exemption benefit granted by the Agency.

- SECTION 6. MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION. (A) General. State law provides that mortgages recorded by the Agency are exempt from mortgage recording taxes imposed pursuant to Article 11 of the Tax Law. The Agency has a general policy of abating mortgage recording taxes for Applicants under the following circumstances: (1) Initial financing obtained from the Agency with respect to each project with respect to which the Agency issues debt which will be secured by a mortgage upon real property; (2) In instances where the initial financing commitment provides for a construction financing of the Agency to be replaced by a permanent financing of the Agency immediately upon or shortly after the completion of the project, the Agency's general policy is to abate the mortgage recording tax on both the construction financing and the permanent financing; and (3) Refinancings of prior debt issued by the Agency, on any modifications, extensions and renewals thereof, so long as the Agency fees relating to same have been fully paid.
- (B) <u>Non-Agency Financings</u>. With respect to straight lease or installment sale transactions where the Project occupant needs to borrow money for purposes relating the Project, and the lender will not make the loan to the Project occupant without obtaining a fee mortgage as security, the policy of the Agency is to consent to the granting of such mortgage and to join in such mortgage, so long as the following conditions are met:
  - (1) the documents relating to such proposed mortgage make it clear that the Agency is not liable on the debt, and that any liability of the Agency on the mortgage is limited to the Agency's interest in the project;
  - (2) the granting of the mortgage is permitted under any existing documents relating to the project, and any necessary consents relating thereto have been obtained by the project occupant; and
    - (3) the payment of the Agency Fee relating to the total Project cost.
- (C) Exemption Affidavit. The act of granting a mortgage recording tax exemption by the Agency is confirmed by the execution by an authorized officer of the Agency of an exemption affidavit relating thereto.
- (D) <u>PILOT Payments</u>. If the Agency is a party to a mortgage that is not granted a mortgage recording tax exemption by the Agency (a "non-exempt mortgage"), then the Applicant and/or Project occupant shall pay the same mortgage recording taxes with respect to such mortgage as would have been payable had the Agency not been a party to said mortgage (the "normal mortgage tax"). Such mortgage

recording taxes are payable to the County Clerk, who shall in turn distribute same in accordance with law.

If for any reason a non-exempt mortgage is to be recorded and the Agency is aware that such non-exempt mortgage may for any reason be recorded without the payment of the normal mortgage tax, then the Agency shall prior to executing such non-exempt mortgage collect a PILOT equal to the normal mortgage tax and remit same within thirty (30) days of receipt by the Agency to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions in accordance with the Act.

- SECTION 7. REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAXES. (A) Real Estate Transfer Tax. Article 31 of the Tax Law provides for the imposition of a tax upon certain real estate transfers. Section 1405(b)(2) of the Tax Law provides that transfers into the Agency are exempt from such tax, and the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance has ruled that transfers of property by the Agency back to the same entity which transferred such property to the Agency are exempt from such tax. The general policy of the Agency is to impose no payment in lieu of tax upon any real estate transfers to or from the Agency.
- (B) Real Property Transfer Gains Tax. Article 31-B of the Tax Law provides for the imposition of a tax upon gains derived from the transfer of certain real estate in New York State. Certain transfers are exempt from such tax. It is the policy of the Agency to comply with the law, and to file the appropriate documentation with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance to obtain preclearance by that department for any documents transferring real property to or from the Agency.
- (C) <u>Required Filings</u>. It shall be the responsibility of the Applicant and/or Project occupant to ensure that all documentation necessary relative to the real estate transfer tax and the real estate transfer gains tax are timely filed with the appropriate officials.
- SECTION 8. REAL ESTATE TAX EXEMPTION. (A) <u>General</u>. Pursuant to Section 874 of the Act and Section 412-a of the Real Property Tax Law, property owned by or under the jurisdiction or supervision or control of the Agency is exempt from general real estate taxes (but not exempt from special assessments and special ad valorem levies). However, it is the general policy of the Agency that, notwithstanding the foregoing, every non-governmental Project will be required to enter into a payment in lieu of tax agreement (a "Pilot Agreement"), either separately or as part of the Project documents. Such Pilot Agreement shall require payment of Pilot payments in accordance with the provisions set forth below.
- (B) <u>Pilot Requirement</u>. Unless the Applicant and/or Project occupant and the Agency shall have entered into a Pilot Agreement acceptable to the Agency, the Project documents shall provide that the Agency will not file a New York Board of Real Property Services Form RP-412-a (an "Exemption Form") with respect to the Project, and the Project documents shall provide that the Applicant and/or the Project occupant shall be required to make Pilot payments in such amounts as would result from taxes being levied on the Project by the Affected Tax Jurisdictions if the Project were not owned by or under the jurisdiction or supervision or control of the Agency. The Project documents shall provide that, if the Agency and the Applicant and/or Project occupant have entered into a Pilot Agreement, the terms of the Pilot Agreement shall control the amount of Pilot payments until the expiration or sooner termination of such Pilot Agreement.
- (C) Required Filings. As indicated in subsection (B) above, pursuant to Section 874 of the Act and Section 412-a of the Real Property Tax Law, no real estate tax exemption with respect to a particular Project shall be effective until an Exemption Form is filed with the assessor of each Affected Tax Jurisdiction. Once an Exemption Form with respect to a particular Project is filed with a particular Affected Tax Jurisdiction, the real property tax exemption for such Project does not take effect until (1) a tax status date for such Affected Tax Jurisdiction occurs subsequent to such filing, (2) an assessment roll

for such Taxing Jurisdiction is finalized subsequent to such tax status date, (3) such assessment roll becomes the basis for the preparation of a tax roll for such Affected Tax Jurisdiction, and (4) the tax year to which such tax roll relates commences.

- (D) <u>Pilot Agreement</u>. Unless otherwise determined by resolution of the Agency, all Pilot Agreements shall satisfy the following general conditions:
  - (1) Determination of Full Assessment: With respect to a Project including new construction, the general policy of the Agency is to take title to (or a leasehold interest in) said Project, and to file an Exemption Form providing that the appropriate officer or officers of the respective Affected Tax Jurisdictions in which such Project is located (each, an "Assessor") will determine the interim assessments of such Project as construction progresses thereon (each, an "Interim New Assessment") and a final assessment thereof (the "Final New Assessment") when construction is completed. With respect to a Project including existing buildings, the general policy of the Agency is to either avoid taking title to (or a leasehold interest in) such existing buildings, or, if such is not possible, to include the existing assessment on such buildings (the Assessment", and collectively with the Interim New Assessment, the "Full Assessment", and collectively with the Final New Assessment, the "Final Full Assessment"). Once the Final Full Assessment is fixed, the Final Full Assessment shall be frozen and used as the basis of taxation of the Project for the initial period (the "Initial Period") applicable to the Project pursuant to paragraph (2) below. During the Initial Period, the Applicant shall pay real estate Pilot payments determined in each tax year as follows: (a) first, determine the assessment of the new construction portion of the Project for such tax year (the "Current New Assessment"), which assessment shall be a percentage of the Final New Assessment determined by subtracting the percentage of abatement applicable to such year (as determined pursuant to paragraph (2) below) from 100%; (b) next, determine the assessment of the Project for such tax year (the "Current Pilot Assessment") by adding the Current New Assessment to the Existing Assessment; and (c) finally, determine the Pilot payment payable to with respect to the Project to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction by multiplying the Current Pilot Assessment by the applicable tax rate of the such Affected Tax Jurisdiction. Once the Initial Period has ended, the Applicant will pay real estate Pilot payments determined in each tax year as follows: multiply the Final Full Assessment by the applicable tax rate of the such Affected Tax Jurisdiction.
- (E) <u>PILOT Categories</u>: Unless otherwise approved by the Agency, the period of exemption will fall within two categories, fifteen (15), or ten years (10) depending on the nature of the Project. The Agency reserves the right to deviate from this structure as provided by the Act and this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy.

#### (1) Fifteen-Year Strategic Schedule

Eligible Projects that are considered strategic priorities include, but are not limited, to general manufacturing, industrial, life sciences, research and development, banking/financial services, defense and aerospace, data-processing, food and/or beverage processing, agribusiness, telecommunications, medical/diagnostic labs, and biotechnology. This schedule provides that (i) the initial period shall be fifteen (15) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	95%

2	95%
3	95%
4	85%
5	80%
6	75%

- 8 -

-
65%
60%
55%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
5%
0%

#### (2) Technology and Advanced Manufacturing Schedule

Technology Projects Science and Technology Projects (including, but not limited to, artificial intelligence, augmented reality, virtual reality, 3D printing, software, nanotechnology, cyber security, semiconductors, information technology, robotics, cloud services, IoT software/hardware/connectivity, data storage, big data analytics, and software/ hardware) emerging industries and advanced manufacturing projects (including, but not limited to, the "use of innovative technologies to create existing products and the creation of new products. Advanced manufacturing can also include production activities that depend on information, automation, computation, software, sensing, and networking.) This schedule provides that (i)the initial period shall be fifteen (15) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	100%
2	100%
3	100%

4	100%
5	100%
6	90%
7	80%
8	70%
9	60%
10	50%
11	40%
12	30%
13	20%
14	10%
15	5%
Year 16 and thereafter	0%

#### (3) <u>Ten Year Schedule</u>

For Projects that qualify for the ten-year schedule, the initial period shall be ten (10) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the table below. Eligible Projects include, but are not limited to media and communications, healthcare, insurance, recreation, professional office, workforce housing, affordable housing, senior housing, healthcare/assisted living, hotels/lodging, qualifying retail, mixed-use development and tourism facilities.

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	100%
2	90%
3	80%
4	70%
5	60%
6	50%

7	40%
8	30%
9	20%
10	10%
Year 11 and thereafter	0%

#### (4) Adaptive Reuse of Facilities

Adaptive reuse projects are considered a strategic priority, and therefore will fall into a separate and distinct category. Adaptive reuse projects may include, but are not limited to buildings that are historic, abandoned, underutilized, or need significant environmental remediation.

The Agency will consider the following variables when examining a commercial adaptive reuse project:

- The age of the building
- Barriers to development
- History in the community
- Amount of time the building has been vacant and/or underutilized
- Support of taxing jurisdiction that the structure is located in
- Whether reuse of the building will involve environmental remediation costs •

For qualified adaptive reuse projects, the following schedule provides that (i) the initial period shall be fifteen (15) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	<del>90%</del> <u>100%</u>
2	<del>90%</del> <u>95%</u>
3	90%
4	<del>75%</del> <u>85%</u>
5	<del>75%</del> - <u>80%</u>
6	<del>75%-</del> 75%
7	<del>50%-</del> 70%
8	<del>50%</del> -65%
9	<del>50%</del> 60%

10	<del>40%</del> <u>55%</u>
11	<del>30%</del> <u>50%</u>
12	<del>20%</del> - <u>45%</u>
13	<del>10%</del> - <u>40%</u>
14	<del>10%</del> - <u>35%</u>
15	<del>5%</del> - <u>30%</u>
Year 16 and thereafter	0%

#### (5) Qualified Commercial: New Construction

If the commercial project involves new construction, the initial period shall be ten years with the percentage of exemption set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	100%
2	80%
3	70%
4	60%
5	50%
6	40%
7	30%
8	20%
9	10%
10	10%
Year 11 and thereafter	0%

#### (6) Warehousing/Distribution

For warehousing and distribution projects, the initial period shall be ten (10) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the table below

Year	Percent of Exemption
1	60%

2	60%
3	60%
4	50%
5	45%
6	40%
7	35%
8	30%
9	20%
10	10%
Year 11 and thereafter	0%

#### (7) Solar and Small-Energy Projects

Solar, eligible wind, energy storage, and small-energy projects will be eligible for a fifteen (15) year PILOT commensurate with New York State's RPTL 487 tax exemption, with fixed PILOT Payments determined by the Agency in its sole discretion. In determining the PILOT Agreement, the Agency, may consider the total amount of power generated, stored, or transmitted by such project and the assessed value of such project.

- (F) Reduction for Failure to Achieve Goals: If the Agency's approval of a particular project is predicated upon achievement by the project of certain minimum goals (such as creating and maintaining certain minimum employment levels), the Pilot Agreement may provide for the benefits provided thereby to the project to be reduced or eliminated if, in the sole judgment of the Agency, the project has failed to fulfill such minimum goals. Except as otherwise provided by resolution of the Agency, all real estate Pilot payments are to be paid to the Receiver of Taxes for the Town for distribution to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions. Upon expiration of the Initial Period as aforesaid, the assessment of the project shall revert to a normal assessment (i.e., the project will be assessed as if the project were owned by the Applicant and not by the Agency). Also, any addition to the project shall be assessed normally as aforesaid, unless such addition shall be approved by the Agency as a separate project following notice and a public hearing as described in Section 859-a of the Act. Other than fixing the Final Assessment for the Initial Period as aforesaid, the general policy of the Agency is to not provide the Applicant and/or project occupant with any abatement, other than abatements allowed under the Real Property Tax Law.
- (G) <u>Special District Taxes</u>. As indicated above, the Agency cannot include in any exemption any special assessments and special ad valorem levies, and accordingly these amounts are not subject to abatement by reason of ownership of the Project by the Agency. The Pilot Agreement shall make this clear and shall require that all such amounts be directly paid by the Applicant and/or project occupant. However, Applicants and project occupants should be aware that the courts have ruled that an Agency-sponsored project is also eligible to apply for an exemption from special district taxes pursuant to Section 485-b of the Real Property Tax Law. If an Applicant or project occupant desires to obtain an exemption from special district taxes pursuant to said Section 485-b, it is the responsibility of the Applicant and/or project occupant to apply for same at its sole cost and expense.

- (H) <u>Payee</u>. Unless otherwise determined by resolution of the Agency, all Pilot payments payable to an Affected Tax Jurisdiction shall be assessed, billed and collected by the Receiver of Taxes for the Town. Pursuant to Section 874(3) of the Act, such Pilot payments shall be remitted to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction within thirty (30) days of receipt.
- (I) <u>Enforcement</u>. An Affected Tax Jurisdiction which has not received a Pilot payment due to it under a Pilot Agreement may exercise its remedies under Section 874(6) of the Act. In addition, such Affected Tax Jurisdiction may petition the Agency to exercise whatever remedies that the Agency may have under the project documents to enforce payment and, if such Affected Tax Jurisdiction indemnifies the Agency and agrees to pay the Agency's costs incurred in connection therewith, the Agency may take action to enforce the Pilot Agreement.
- (J) Real Property Appraisals. Since the policy of the Agency stated in subsection (C)(1) is to base the value of a project for payment in lieu of tax purposes on a valuation of such project performed by the respective Assessors, normally a separate real property appraisal is not required. However, the Agency may require the submission of a real property appraisal if (1) the Assessor of any particular Affected Tax Jurisdiction requires one or (2) if the valuation of the project for payment in lieu of tax purposes is based on a value determined by the Applicant or by someone acting on behalf of the Applicant, rather than by an Assessor of an Affected Tax Jurisdiction or by the Agency. In lieu of an appraisal, the Agency may require that an Applicant submit to the Agency and each Assessor a certified enumeration of all project costs. If the Agency requires the submission of a real property appraisal, such appraisal shall be prepared by an independent MAI certified appraiser acceptable to the Agency.
- SECTION 9. PROCEDURES FOR DEVIATION. (A) <u>General</u>. In the case where the Agency may determine to deviate from the provisions of this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section 3(C) hereof, the Agency may deviate from the provisions hereof, provided that:
  - (1) the Agency adopts a resolution (a) setting forth, with respect to the proposed deviation, the amount of the proposed Tax Exemption, the amount and nature of the proposed Pilot, the duration of the proposed Tax Exemption and of the proposed Pilot and whether or not a Tax Exemption of any kind shall be granted, (b) indicating the reasons for the proposed deviation and (c) imposing such terms and conditions thereon as the Agency shall deem just and proper; and
  - (2) as provided in Section 3(C) hereof, the Agency shall give prior written notice of the proposed deviation from this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction, setting forth therein a general description of the proposed deviation and the reasons therefor.

Whenever possible, the Agency shall give such notice to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction at least thirty (30) days prior to the consideration by the Agency of the final resolution determining to proceed with such proposed deviation from this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy.

- (B) <u>Agency-Owned Projects</u>. Where a project (1) constitutes a Non-Applicant Project, (2) is otherwise owned and operated by the Agency or (3) has been acquired by the Agency for its own account after a failure of a project occupant, such project may at the option of the Agency be exempted by the Agency from all taxes, to the extent provided in Section 874(1) and (2) of the Act.
- (C) <u>Unusual Projects</u>. Where a project is unusual in nature and requires special considerations related to its successful operations as demonstrated by appropriate evidence presented to the Agency, the Agency may consider the granting of a deviation from the established exemption policy in accordance

with the procedures provided in Section 3(B) and Section 8(A) hereof. The Agency may authorize a minimum payment in lieu of tax or such other arrangement as may be appropriate.

SECTION 10. ANNUAL ASSESSMENT POLICY. (A) The Agency shall annually assess the progress of each Project for which bonds or notes remain outstanding, or straight-lease transactions have not terminated, or which continue to receive financial assistance, or are otherwise active toward its achievement of the investment, job retention or creation, or other objectives of the active Project indicated in the active Project's application for financial assistance, or otherwise considered by the Agency in its approval of the active Project.

- (1). Field Reports To perform its assessments, the Agency shall at least annually solicit information from each active Project's representatives regarding investment, job retention or creation or other objectives of each active Project and such additional information as the Agency may find helpful in its assessment or which is required for the Agency to meet its reporting requirements under the Act. The Annual Project Information shall consist of information for the period of January 1 through December 31, except that the period for the first year of an active Project shall be the date of closing through December 31.
- (2). Remediation As part of its collection of annual Project information, staff may perform random or annual site visits of active Projects. Staff shall review the annual Project information of each active Project for completeness and, if necessary, communicate with an active Project's representatives to obtain any necessary information not initially provided. If the annual Project information demonstrates that an active Project has not met its goals, Agency staff shall meet with active Project's representatives to assess Project performance and its ability to fulfill the original Project goals (a "Project Evaluation Meeting").
- (3). Project Assessment Reporting Using the annual Project information and the findings from the Project Evaluation Meeting, if any, a written assessment shall be completed for each active Project by staff. An assessment for each active Project shall be provided annually to each member of the Agency. Each such assessment shall be completed no later than March 31 in order for the Agency to comply with its annual reporting requirements under the Act and the New York State Public Authorities Law.

SECTION 11. SUSPENSION, DISCONTINUATION, RECAPTURE OR TERMINATION OF BENEFITS POLICY. (A) The Agency has adopted this Suspension, Discontinuation or Recapture of Benefits Policy (the "Policy") in accordance with the Act and any other applicable law.

- (B). Mandatory Recapture of the New York State Portion of Sales Tax The Agency shall recapture from Applicants New York State sales tax benefits, in accordance with the provisions of the General Municipal Law, from Projects that utilized State sales tax exemptions:
  - To which the Project was not entitled;
  - In excess of the amounts authorized by the Agency;
  - For property or services not authorized by the Agency; and/or
  - For a Project that has failed to comply with a material term or condition to use the property or services in the manner required by any of the Project documents between the Applicant and the Agency.

Each of the foregoing four events are hereinafter referred to as a "State-Mandated Recapture Event". The Agency shall evaluate, annually as of December 31, or at any time information is brought to the Agency's attention, whether a State-Mandated Recapture Event has occurred.

- (C). The approving resolution(s) and Project documents granting financial assistance in the form of State sales tax exemption benefits shall include the terms and conditions of the foregoing mandatory recapture provision. Within thirty (30) days of the recapture, the recapture amount shall be remitted to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. Such remittances shall include any penalties and interest imposed by the Agency. The failure to pay over such amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Tax Commissioner to assess and determine State sales taxes due from the Applicant under article twenty-eight of the New York State Tax Law, together with any relevant penalties and interest due on such amounts.
- (D). In order to effectuate the recapture of New York State sales tax benefits the Agency shall:
  - Keep records of the New York State and local sales tax exemptions provided to each Project, with such records available to the New York State Tax Commissioner upon request. Report within thirty days of providing any financial assistance in the form of a sales tax exemption, the Project, the estimated amount of the exemption and other information as may be required by the New York State Tax Commissioner (Form ST-60).
  - The Agency shall file an annual report with the New York State Tax Commissioner detailing its terms and conditions and its activities in recapturing any unauthorized New York State sales tax exemptions.

SECTION 12. SUSPENSION, DISCONTINUATION, RECAPTURE OR TERMINATION OF OTHER FORMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE. (A) With respect to all financial assistance other than the State portion of sales tax exemptions, the Agency shall have the right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate some or all of the financial assistance if:

- The Project utilized local sales tax exemptions for which it was not entitled, such exemptions were in excess of the amounts authorized by the Agency, and/or such exemptions were for property or services not authorized by the Agency (each, a "Local Sales Tax Benefit Violation");
- The Applicant, upon completion of the Project, fails to reach and maintain at least 85 percent of Its employment requirements for job creation and/or retention ("Job Deficit");
- The total investment actually made with respect to the Project at the Project's completion date is less than 85 percent of its investment requirement ("Investment Deficit");
- The Applicant fails to provide annually to the Agency certain information to confirm that the Project is achieving the investment, job retention, job creation, and other objectives of the Project ("Reporting Failure"); or
- There otherwise occurs any event of default under any Project document (each, an "Event of Default") or a material violation of the terms and conditions of any Project document (a "Material Violation").
- (B). The Agency shall evaluate, annually as of December 31, or at any time information is brought to the Agency's attention, whether a Local Sales Tax Benefit Violation, Job Deficit, Investment Deficit, Reporting Failure, Event of Default, or Material Violation (each a "Noncompliance Event") has occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Agency may determine whether an Event of Default has occurred pursuant to any Project document in accordance with the terms of the Project document. Prior to determining that a Noncompliance Event has occurred, the Agency may give the Applicant notice of its intent to make such determination and request the Applicant to submit a written response within 30 days for consideration.
  - (C). At the time of any Noncompliance Event, the Agency shall determine by resolution whether to

exercise its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of the financial assistance provided to a Project, and shall consider the following in making its determination:

- Whether the Applicant has proceeded in good faith;
- Whether the Project has not performed as required due to economic issues, changes in market conditions, or adverse events beyond the control of the Applicant;
- Whether the enforcement by the Agency of its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of financial assistance would create a more adverse situation for the Applicant, such as the Applicant going out of business or declaring bankruptcy, which would not occur if the Agency's rights were not exercised;
- Whether the enforcement by the Agency of its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of financial assistance would create an adverse situation for the residents of Orange County; or
- Such other criteria as the Agency shall determine is a relevant factor in connection with any decision regarding the exercise of its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of financial assistance.
- (D). The Agency shall document its evaluation of the above criteria and based upon its evaluation, the Agency shall determine, at its sole discretion, whether to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of the financial assistance. The determination shall provide terms, if any, by which a Applicant may remedy any Noncompliance Event upon which the determination was based. The Applicant must submit written documentation to the Agency covering compliance with all terms and conditions of the determination in order for the Agency to consider whether to resume financial assistance to the Applicant (which will be at the Agency's sole discretion).
- (E). The Project agreement entered into between the Agency and the Applicant (the "Project Agreement") shall include the terms and conditions of the foregoing provisions. The Agency shall also include in the Project Agreement a requirement that the Applicant comply with the Agency's right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate financial assistance and that the Applicant shall repay all or a portion of the financial assistance granted by the Agency to the Applicant pursuant to any Determination.
- (F). Any such amount constituting recovered or recouped tax exemptions shall be distributed to the appropriate affected tax jurisdictions, unless agreed to otherwise by any local taxing jurisdiction.
- (G). Except as otherwise provided by the General Municipal Law, the recapture period will be the longer of: (1) the term of the Lease Agreement; or (2) five years following the Project's completion date. A Project will remain "active" for purposes of Section 874(12) of General Municipal Law and the Agency's Annual Assessment Policy during the term of the Project Agreement.
- SECTION 13. ANNUAL REVIEW OF POLICY. At least annually, in accordance with the Act, the Agency shall review this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy to determine relevance, compliance with law, effectiveness, and shall adopt any modifications or changes that it shall deem appropriate. The Executive Director shall be responsible for conducting an annual review of this tax exemption policy and for an evaluation of the internal control structure established to ensure compliance with the tax exemption policy, which review shall be submitted to the Agency for consideration by the Agency.

(Mission Statement & Committee Reports should be added to minutes for reference).					

4- Felicia Kalan- Read the Audit Committee Memo, Governance Memo, same committee met January 10, they reviewed a proposal and would like to make a recommendation to the Board for auditing services. We reviewed PKF O Connor Davies, their services are estimated at 10,000 for auditing services. The \$10,000 estimated total is on page 12 of the proposal. The main point of contact is Jeffrey Shaver, and they specialize in this type of auditing services for public authorities and have locations throughout the Northeast. This is the official recommendation from the Auditing Committee.

Other committees that met in December were Governance Committee (Memo was read) and the Finance Committee met on December 13, report was read (Memo attached).

5- Jeffrey Crist- Annual reorganization resolution for consideration and discussion for approval covering priorities and actions that we will take, including approving officers and committees and our professional services.

Ashley Torre- the Mission Statement and UTEP Policy are not in there, let's discuss Mission Statement first.

Jeffrey Crist- let's then discuss the Mission Statement and you have a document with proposed language.

6- Felicia Kalan- Current MIDA mission statement was read, proposed mission statement "The Town of Montgomery advances the economic prosperity - add in new mission statement here

Tom Jones- I have a few comments- adding in quality of life. I don't understand the last word-recreate.

Felicia Kalan- Agritourism is the main focus, we want the Hudson Valley to be the premier place to visit.

Tom Jones- I think that would be the best word for the general public. I just wouldn't work on changing the mission statement every year, this should be something we keep consistent.

Jeffrey Crist- Let's continue with the reorganization resolution which includes all of our policies but UTEP, which we are looking at further revisions to, the attached meeting schedule for 2023,

staff appointments, officers, committees, appointment of accounting firm of PKF O'Connor Davies, appointment of our legal counsel and our bond counsel, Robert, appointment of bank, Orange Bank and Trust.

John Dickson- motion, second to motion Robert Santo. Roll Call.

(List all committee members in favor Aye Aye Aye Aye

Jeffrey Crist- All in favor, none opposed, motion carried on the Resolution.

7- Felicia Kalan- UTEP Policy Discussion we are required to annually review any changes we make to the schedule we have to notify taxing jurisdictions and have a public hearing.

#### TOWN OF MONTGOMERY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

#### UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY

SECTION 1. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY. Pursuant to Section 874(4)(a) of Title One of Article 18-A
of the General Municipal Law (the "Act"), Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency (the
"Agency") is required to establish a uniform tax exemption policy ("Uniform Tax Exemption Policy")
applicable to the provision of any financial assistance of more than one hundred thousand dollars to any
project. This uniform tax-exemption policy was adopted pursuant to a resolution enacted by the members
of the Agency on

- SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. All words and terms used herein and defined in the Act shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Act, unless otherwise defined herein or unless the context or use indicates another meaning or intent. The following words and terms used herein shall have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context or use indicates another meaning or intent:
- (A) "Administrative Fee" shall mean a charge imposed by the Agency to an Applicant or Project occupant for the administration of a Project.
- (B) "Affected Tax Jurisdiction" shall mean, with respect to a particular Project, the Town and each Municipality or School District in which such Project is located which will fail to receive real property tax payments which would otherwise be due with respect to such Project due to a Tax Exemption obtained by reason of the involvement of the Agency in such Project.
  - (C) "Agency" shall mean the Town of Montgomery Industrial Development Agency.
- (D) "Agency Fee" shall mean the normal charges imposed by the Agency to an Applicant or a Project occupant to compensate the Agency for the Agency's participation in a Project. The term "Agency Fee" shall include not only the Agency's normal application fee and the Agency's normal Administrative Fee, but also may include (1) reimbursement of the Agency's expenses, (2) rent imposed by the Agency for use of the property of the Agency, and (3) other similar charges imposed by the Agency.
- (E) "Applicant" shall mean an applicant for financial assistance or a company or occupant of a Project which has been granted a Tax Exemption, as the case may be.
- (F) "Applicant Project" shall mean a project which is undertaken by the Agency for the benefit of an Applicant which either (1) has been or will be financed by the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness with respect thereto or (2) is a straight lease transaction which the Agency has determined to undertake.
  - (G) "County" shall mean Orange County, New York.
  - (H) "Municipality" shall mean each village located within the Town.
- (I) "Non-Applicant Project" means a project which is undertaken by the Agency for the benefit of the Agency and shall not include an Applicant Project.
- (J) "Pilot" or "Payment in Lieu of Tax" shall mean any payment made to the Agency or an Affected Tax Jurisdiction equal to all or a portion of the real property taxes or other taxes which would have been levied by or on behalf of an Affected Tax Jurisdiction with respect to a project but for Tax Exemption obtained by reason of the involvement of the Agency in such project, but such term shall not

include Agency Fees.

- (K) "Project" shall mean an activity which is undertaken by the Agency for the benefit of an Applicant which either (1) has been or will be financed by the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidence of indebtedness with respect thereto, or (2) is a straight lease transaction (as defined in the Act) which the Agency has determined to undertake.
  - (L) "Sales tax" or "sales taxes" shall mean sales and/or use taxes.
  - (M) "School District" shall mean each school district located within the Town.
- (N) "Tax Exemption" shall mean any financial assistance granted to a Project which is based upon all or a portion of the taxes which would otherwise be levied and assessed against a Project but for the involvement of the Agency, including but not limited to sales and use exemption, mortgage recording tax exemption and exemption from real property taxes.
  - (O) "Town" shall mean the Town of Montgomery.
- (P) "Adaptive Reuse" means the renovation and reuse of pre-existing structures for new purposes
- (Q) "Workforce Housing" means housing that is affordable to households earning 60 to 120 percent of the area median income
- (R) "New Construction" means entirely new structures or significant extensions to existing structures regardless of whether the site was previously occupied
- SECTION 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS. (A) <u>General Policy</u>. The general policy of the Agency is to grant Tax Exemption as hereinafter set forth to any Project which has been or will be (1) financed by the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidence of indebtedness with respect thereto, or (2) otherwise assisted by the Agency pursuant to a straight lease transaction.
- (B) <u>Application</u>. No request for a Tax Exemption shall be considered for approval by the Agency unless an application and environmental assessment form are filed with the Agency on the forms prescribed by the Agency. Such application shall contain the information requested by the Agency, including a description of the proposed Project, the identification of the Applicant and the occupant of the Project, a description of each Tax Exemption sought with respect to the Project, the estimated value of each Tax Exemption sought with respect to the Project, the proposed financial assistance being sought with respect to the Project, the estimated date of completion of the Project, and whether such financial assistance is consistent with this Policy.
- (C) Exceptions. The Agency reserves the right to deviate from such policy in special circumstances. In determining whether special circumstances exist to justify such a deviation, the Agency may consider the magnitude of the deviation sought and the factors which might make the project unusual, which factors might include but not be limited to the following factors: (1) the magnitude and/or importance of any permanent private sector job creation and/or retention related to the proposed project in question; (2) the impact of such project on existing and proposed businesses and/or economic development projects; (3) the amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by such project; (4) demonstrated public support for such project; (5) the estimated value of the Tax Exemptions requested; and (6) the extent to which such project will provide needed services and/or revenues to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions. In addition, the Agency may consider the other factors outlined in the Act. The process for

any deviation is set forth in this policy.

- SECTION 4. PROJECT APPROVAL POLICY. (A) Prior to the adoption of a resolution approving the grant of financial assistance for an Applicant seeking financial assistance, the following shall be accomplished:
- (1). Assessment The Agency members shall assess all material information included in connection with the application for financial assistance submitted by or on behalf of the Applicant seeking such financial assistance in order to afford a reasonable basis for the decision by the Agency to provide financial assistance for a proposed project.
- (2). Cost Benefit Analysis The assessment material shall include a staff-prepared written cost-benefit analysis identifying:
  - Extent to which a Project will create or retain permanent private-sector jobs. Estimated value of tax exemptions and support.
  - Amount of private sector investment.
  - Likelihood of timely Project completion.
  - Extent of "new revenue" provided to local taxing jurisdictions.
  - Other public benefits.

The members shall consider the cost-benefit analysis as part of the assessment.

- (3). Applicant Confirmation of Compliance The Agency must receive from the Applicant a written statement that, as of the date of the application, the proposed project is in substantial compliance with all provisions of General Municipal Law Article 18-A, including but not limited to Sections 859-a and 862(1).
- (4). Notification If a proposed project involves the removal or abandonment of a facility or plant within New York State, the Agency shall notify the chief executive officer or officers of the municipality or municipalities in which the facility or plant was located. If applicable, such notice shall be sent within 10 days following the adoption of a Public Hearing Resolution.
- SECTION 5. SALES TAX EXEMPTION. (A) <u>General</u>. State law provides that purchases of tangible personal property by the Agency or by an agent of the Agency, and purchases of tangible personal property by a contractor for incorporation into or improving, maintaining, servicing or repairing real property of the Agency, are exempt from sales and use taxes imposed pursuant to Article 28 of the Tax Law. The Agency has a general policy of abating sales and use taxes applicable only to the initial acquisition, construction and/or equipping of an Applicant Project.

- (B) Exemption. The Agency has no requirement for imposing a payment in lieu of tax arising from the exemption of an Applicant Project from sales and/or use taxes applicable to the initial acquisition, construction and/or equipping of such project, except (1) as described in subsection (F) below or (2) in the circumstance where (a) an Applicant Project is offered sales and use tax exemption on the condition that a certain event (such as the issuance of bonds by the Agency with respect to the project) occur by a certain date and (b) such event does not occur, in which case the Agency may require that the Applicant make payments in lieu of sales and use taxes equal to the amount of tax which otherwise may have been due to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance.
- (C) <u>Period of Exemption</u>. Except as set forth in subsection (A) above, the period of time for which a sales and use tax exemption shall be effective (the "Tax Exemption Period") shall be determined as follows:
  - (1) <u>General</u>. Unless otherwise determined by the Agency, the sales and use tax exemption for an Applicant Project shall be for the Tax Exemption Period commencing with the issuance by the Agency of bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness with respect to such project, or the execution and delivery by the Agency of a lease agreement relating to such project, and ending on the date of completion of the project. The Tax Exemption Period for a Non Applicant Project shall extend for such period of time as the Agency shall determine.
  - (2) <u>Early Commencement</u>. The Tax Exemption Period for an Applicant Project may, at the discretion of the Agency, commence earlier than the date of issuance by the Agency of the Agency's bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness relating to the project, provided that (a) the Agency has complied with the requirements of Section 859-a of the Act, (b) the Agency thereafter adopts a resolution determining to commence such period earlier, (c) the Applicant agrees to the conditions of such resolution and supplies to the Agency the materials required to be supplied to the Agency thereunder, and (d) the Chairperson or Executive Director of the Agency acknowledges satisfaction of all conditions to the granting of such Tax Exemption set forth in such resolution.
  - (3) Normal Termination. The Tax Exemption Period for an Applicant Project will normally end upon the completion of such project. On construction projects, the Agency and the Applicant shall agree on the estimated date of completion of the project, and the sales and use tax exemption shall cease on the earlier of (a) the actual date of completion of the project or (b) the date which is six (6) months after the estimated date of completion of such project. On non-construction projects, the Agency and the Applicant shall agree on the estimated date of completion of the project, and the sales and use tax exemption shall cease on the earlier of (a) the actual date of completion of the project or (b) the date which is three (3) months after the estimated date of completion of the project. If the Agency and the Applicant shall fail to agree on a date for completion of the project, the Agency shall on notice to the Applicant make the determination on the basis of available evidence.
  - (4) <u>Later Termination</u>. The Agency, for good cause shown, may adopt a resolution extending the period for completion of the project and/or extending the Tax Exemption Period.
- (D) <u>Items Exempted</u>. The sales and use tax exemption granted by the Agency with respect to an Applicant Project shall normally extend only to the following items acquired during the Tax Exemption Period described in subsection (B) above:
  - (1) improvements to and items incorporated into the real property.

- (2) tangible personal property, including furniture, furnishings and equipment used to initially equip the project or otherwise forming part of the project, if purchased by the Applicant as agent of the Agency;
- (3) the rental of tools and other items necessary for the construction and/or equipping of the project, if rented by the Applicant as agent of the Agency; and
- (4) office supplies, fuel and similar items consumed in the process of acquiring, constructing and/or equipping the project, if purchased by the Applicant as agent of the Agency.
- (E) <u>Items Not Exempted</u>. A sales and use tax exemption with respect to an Applicant Project shall not be granted by the Agency for the following:
  - (1) purchases occurring beyond the Tax Exemption Period described in subsection (B) above;
  - (2) repairs, replacements or renovations of the project, unless such repairs, replacements or renovations constitute major capital-type expenses approved by the Agency as a separate project in the manner contemplated by the Act; or
  - (3) operating expenses, unless such operating expenses constitute major capital-type expenses approved by the Agency as a separate project in the manner contemplated by the Act.
- (F) <u>Percentage of Exemption</u>. Unless otherwise determined by resolution of the Agency, the sales and use tax exemption shall be equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the sales and/or use taxes that would have been levied if the project were not exempt by reason of the Agency's involvement in the project. If an exemption of less than one hundred percent (100%) is determined by the Agency to be applicable to a particular Applicant Project, then the Applicant shall be required to pay a Pilot to the Agency equal to the applicable percentage of sales and/or use tax liability not being abated. The Agency shall remit such Pilot, within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof by the Agency, to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions in accordance with Section 874(3) of the Act.
- (G) Appointment of Agency Agent. The final act of granting a sales and/or use tax exemption by the Agency shall be confirmed by the execution by the appointment of the Project owner ("Owner") as Agency agent, with the authority to purchase Project-related property and services using the Agency's sales tax exemption. The Agency must file Form ST60 with the New York State Department of Tax and Finance within 30 days after the appointment. The Owner must notify the Agency of each sub-agent appointment, so the Agency can execute the required Form ST-60 for the sub-agent. Contractors and subcontractors who have not been appointed Agency agent or sub-agent cannot use the sales and tax exemption for equipment rentals, tools, supplies, and other items that do not become part of the finished Project. All Project contractors and subcontractors must be appointed as agent or sub-agent of the Agency in order to use the sales tax exemption for Project-related purchases. Owners and other properly appointed Agency agents and sub-agents claim the sales tax exemption for all purchases by giving their vendors Form ST-123. All bills, invoices and other documents for Project-related purchases by Agency agents and sub-agents should specifically indicate the purchase is made as agent of the Agency (i.e., name of purchaser is "ABC Company, as agent of the Town of Montgomery IDA"). . Such confirmation letter may either be in the form of a letter for the duration of the anticipated construction period relating to the project (where the sales and use tax exemption is permanent, because the Agency is satisfied that any conditions precedent to such sales and use tax exemption, such as the issuance of bonds or the execution of a lease agreement by the Agency, have been satisfied) or a letter having a shorter duration (where such sales and use tax exemption is tentative, because there remain conditions precedent to such sales and use tax exemption which have not

been satisfied). Each such confirmation letter shall describe the scope and term of the sales and use tax exemption being granted.

(H) <u>Required Filings</u>. The New York State Department of Taxation and Finance requires that all Agency agents and sub-agents Owner must file Form ST-340 with the Department and the Agency on or before the last day of February each year. The ST-340 reports the amount of Agency sales tax exemptions claimed for the prior calendar year. The Owner's agreements with its contractors and subcontractors should require the contractors and subcontractors to provide to the Owner the annual information regarding the amount of sales tax exemptions claimed. The project documents shall require that (1) a copy of such ST

340 report will also be filed with the Agency and (2) that the project occupant shall maintain, for a period ending seven (7) years after the last purchase made under the sales and use tax exemption, and make available to the Agency at the request of the Agency, detailed records which shall show the method of calculating the sales and use tax exemption benefit granted by the Agency.

- SECTION 6. MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION. (A) General. State law provides that mortgages recorded by the Agency are exempt from mortgage recording taxes imposed pursuant to Article 11 of the Tax Law. The Agency has a general policy of abating mortgage recording taxes for Applicants under the following circumstances: (1) Initial financing obtained from the Agency with respect to each project with respect to which the Agency issues debt which will be secured by a mortgage upon real property; (2) In instances where the initial financing commitment provides for a construction financing of the Agency to be replaced by a permanent financing of the Agency immediately upon or shortly after the completion of the project, the Agency's general policy is to abate the mortgage recording tax on both the construction financing and the permanent financing; and (3) Refinancings of prior debt issued by the Agency, on any modifications, extensions and renewals thereof, so long as the Agency fees relating to same have been fully paid.
- (B) <u>Non-Agency Financings</u>. With respect to straight lease or installment sale transactions where the Project occupant needs to borrow money for purposes relating the Project, and the lender will not make the loan to the Project occupant without obtaining a fee mortgage as security, the policy of the Agency is to consent to the granting of such mortgage and to join in such mortgage, so long as the following conditions are met:
  - (1) the documents relating to such proposed mortgage make it clear that the Agency is not liable on the debt, and that any liability of the Agency on the mortgage is limited to the Agency's interest in the project;
  - (2) the granting of the mortgage is permitted under any existing documents relating to the project, and any necessary consents relating thereto have been obtained by the project occupant; and
    - (3) the payment of the Agency Fee relating to the total Project cost.
- (C) Exemption Affidavit. The act of granting a mortgage recording tax exemption by the Agency is confirmed by the execution by an authorized officer of the Agency of an exemption affidavit relating thereto.
- (D) <u>PILOT Payments</u>. If the Agency is a party to a mortgage that is not granted a mortgage recording tax exemption by the Agency (a "non-exempt mortgage"), then the Applicant and/or Project occupant shall pay the same mortgage recording taxes with respect to such mortgage as would have been payable had the Agency not been a party to said mortgage (the "normal mortgage tax"). Such mortgage

recording taxes are payable to the County Clerk, who shall in turn distribute same in accordance with law.

If for any reason a non-exempt mortgage is to be recorded and the Agency is aware that such non-exempt mortgage may for any reason be recorded without the payment of the normal mortgage tax, then the Agency shall prior to executing such non-exempt mortgage collect a PILOT equal to the normal mortgage tax and remit same within thirty (30) days of receipt by the Agency to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions in accordance with the Act.

- SECTION 7. REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAXES. (A) Real Estate Transfer Tax. Article 31 of the Tax Law provides for the imposition of a tax upon certain real estate transfers. Section 1405(b)(2) of the Tax Law provides that transfers into the Agency are exempt from such tax, and the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance has ruled that transfers of property by the Agency back to the same entity which transferred such property to the Agency are exempt from such tax. The general policy of the Agency is to impose no payment in lieu of tax upon any real estate transfers to or from the Agency.
- (B) Real Property Transfer Gains Tax. Article 31-B of the Tax Law provides for the imposition of a tax upon gains derived from the transfer of certain real estate in New York State. Certain transfers are exempt from such tax. It is the policy of the Agency to comply with the law, and to file the appropriate documentation with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance to obtain preclearance by that department for any documents transferring real property to or from the Agency.
- (C) <u>Required Filings</u>. It shall be the responsibility of the Applicant and/or Project occupant to ensure that all documentation necessary relative to the real estate transfer tax and the real estate transfer gains tax are timely filed with the appropriate officials.
- SECTION 8. REAL ESTATE TAX EXEMPTION. (A) <u>General</u>. Pursuant to Section 874 of the Act and Section 412-a of the Real Property Tax Law, property owned by or under the jurisdiction or supervision or control of the Agency is exempt from general real estate taxes (but not exempt from special assessments and special ad valorem levies). However, it is the general policy of the Agency that, notwithstanding the foregoing, every non-governmental Project will be required to enter into a payment in lieu of tax agreement (a "Pilot Agreement"), either separately or as part of the Project documents. Such Pilot Agreement shall require payment of Pilot payments in accordance with the provisions set forth below.
- (B) <u>Pilot Requirement</u>. Unless the Applicant and/or Project occupant and the Agency shall have entered into a Pilot Agreement acceptable to the Agency, the Project documents shall provide that the Agency will not file a New York Board of Real Property Services Form RP-412-a (an "Exemption Form") with respect to the Project, and the Project documents shall provide that the Applicant and/or the Project occupant shall be required to make Pilot payments in such amounts as would result from taxes being levied on the Project by the Affected Tax Jurisdictions if the Project were not owned by or under the jurisdiction or supervision or control of the Agency. The Project documents shall provide that, if the Agency and the Applicant and/or Project occupant have entered into a Pilot Agreement, the terms of the Pilot Agreement shall control the amount of Pilot payments until the expiration or sooner termination of such Pilot Agreement.
- (C) Required Filings. As indicated in subsection (B) above, pursuant to Section 874 of the Act and Section 412-a of the Real Property Tax Law, no real estate tax exemption with respect to a particular Project shall be effective until an Exemption Form is filed with the assessor of each Affected Tax Jurisdiction. Once an Exemption Form with respect to a particular Project is filed with a particular Affected Tax Jurisdiction, the real property tax exemption for such Project does not take effect until (1) a tax status date for such Affected Tax Jurisdiction occurs subsequent to such filing, (2) an assessment roll

for such Taxing Jurisdiction is finalized subsequent to such tax status date, (3) such assessment roll becomes the basis for the preparation of a tax roll for such Affected Tax Jurisdiction, and (4) the tax year to which such tax roll relates commences.

- (D) <u>Pilot Agreement</u>. Unless otherwise determined by resolution of the Agency, all Pilot Agreements shall satisfy the following general conditions:
  - (1) Determination of Full Assessment: With respect to a Project including new construction, the general policy of the Agency is to take title to (or a leasehold interest in) said Project, and to file an Exemption Form providing that the appropriate officer or officers of the respective Affected Tax Jurisdictions in which such Project is located (each, an "Assessor") will determine the interim assessments of such Project as construction progresses thereon (each, an "Interim New Assessment") and a final assessment thereof (the "Final New Assessment") when construction is completed. With respect to a Project including existing buildings, the general policy of the Agency is to either avoid taking title to (or a leasehold interest in) such existing buildings, or, if such is not possible, to include the existing assessment on such buildings (the Assessment", and collectively with the Interim New Assessment, the "Full Assessment", and collectively with the Final New Assessment, the "Final Full Assessment"). Once the Final Full Assessment is fixed, the Final Full Assessment shall be frozen and used as the basis of taxation of the Project for the initial period (the "Initial Period") applicable to the Project pursuant to paragraph (2) below. During the Initial Period, the Applicant shall pay real estate Pilot payments determined in each tax year as follows: (a) first, determine the assessment of the new construction portion of the Project for such tax year (the "Current New Assessment"), which assessment shall be a percentage of the Final New Assessment determined by subtracting the percentage of abatement applicable to such year (as determined pursuant to paragraph (2) below) from 100%; (b) next, determine the assessment of the Project for such tax year (the "Current Pilot Assessment") by adding the Current New Assessment to the Existing Assessment; and (c) finally, determine the Pilot payment payable to with respect to the Project to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction by multiplying the Current Pilot Assessment by the applicable tax rate of the such Affected Tax Jurisdiction. Once the Initial Period has ended, the Applicant will pay real estate Pilot payments determined in each tax year as follows: multiply the Final Full Assessment by the applicable tax rate of the such Affected Tax Jurisdiction.
- (E) <u>PILOT Categories</u>: Unless otherwise approved by the Agency, the period of exemption will fall within two categories, fifteen (15), or ten years (10) depending on the nature of the Project. The Agency reserves the right to deviate from this structure as provided by the Act and this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy.

#### (1) Fifteen-Year Strategic Schedule

Eligible Projects that are considered strategic priorities include, but are not limited, to general manufacturing, industrial, life sciences, research and development, banking/financial services, defense and aerospace, data-processing, food and/or beverage processing, agribusiness, telecommunications, medical/diagnostic labs, and biotechnology. This schedule provides that (i) the initial period shall be fifteen (15) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	95%

2	95%
3	95%
4	85%
5	80%
6	75%

- 8 -

- 0 -	
65%	
60%	
55%	
50%	
40%	
30%	
20%	
10%	
5%	
0%	

#### (2) Technology and Advanced Manufacturing Schedule

Technology Projects Science and Technology Projects (including, but not limited to, artificial intelligence, augmented reality, virtual reality, 3D printing, software, nanotechnology, cyber security, semiconductors, information technology, robotics, cloud services, IoT software/hardware/connectivity, data storage, big data analytics, and software/ hardware) emerging industries and advanced manufacturing projects (including, but not limited to, the "use of innovative technologies to create existing products and the creation of new products. Advanced manufacturing can also include production activities that depend on information, automation, computation, software, sensing, and networking.) This schedule provides that (i)the initial period shall be fifteen (15) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	100%
2	100%
3	100%

4	100%
5	100%
6	90%
7	80%
8	70%
9	60%
10	50%
11	40%
12	30%
13	20%
14	10%
15	5%
Year 16 and thereafter	0%

#### (3) <u>Ten Year Schedule</u>

For Projects that qualify for the ten-year schedule, the initial period shall be ten (10) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the table below. Eligible Projects include, but are not limited to media and communications, healthcare, insurance, recreation, professional office, workforce housing, affordable housing, senior housing, healthcare/assisted living, hotels/lodging, qualifying retail, mixed-use development and tourism facilities.

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	100%
2	90%
3	80%
4	70%
5	60%
6	50%

7	40%
8	30%
9	20%
10	10%
Year 11 and thereafter	0%

#### (4) Adaptive Reuse of Facilities

Adaptive reuse projects are considered a strategic priority, and therefore will fall into a separate and distinct category. Adaptive reuse projects may include, but are not limited to buildings that are historic, abandoned, underutilized, or need significant environmental remediation.

The Agency will consider the following variables when examining a commercial adaptive reuse project:

- The age of the building
- Barriers to development
- History in the community
- Amount of time the building has been vacant and/or underutilized
- Support of taxing jurisdiction that the structure is located in
- Whether reuse of the building will involve environmental remediation costs •

For qualified adaptive reuse projects, the following schedule provides that (i) the initial period shall be fifteen (15) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	<del>90%</del> <u>100%</u>
2	<del>90%</del> <u>95%</u>
3	90%
4	<del>75%</del> <u>85%</u>
5	<del>75%</del> - <u>80%</u>
6	<del>75%-</del> 75%
7	<del>50%-</del> 70%
8	<del>50%</del> -65%
9	<del>50%</del> 60%

10	<del>40%</del> <u>55%</u>
11	<del>30%</del> <u>50%</u>
12	<del>20%</del> - <u>45%</u>
13	<del>10%</del> - <u>40%</u>
14	<del>10%</del> - <u>35%</u>
15	<del>5%</del> - <u>30%</u>
Year 16 and thereafter	0%

#### (5) Qualified Commercial: New Construction

If the commercial project involves new construction, the initial period shall be ten years with the percentage of exemption set forth in the following table:

Tax Year	Percent of Exemption
1	100%
2	80%
3	70%
4	60%
5	50%
6	40%
7	30%
8	20%
9	10%
10	10%
Year 11 and thereafter	0%

#### (6) Warehousing/Distribution

For warehousing and distribution projects, the initial period shall be ten (10) years, and (ii) the percentage of each tax year shall be set forth in the table below

Year	Percent of Exemption
1	60%

2	60%
3	60%
4	50%
5	45%
6	40%
7	35%
8	30%
9	20%
10	10%
Year 11 and thereafter	0%

#### (7) Solar and Small-Energy Projects

Solar, eligible wind, energy storage, and small-energy projects will be eligible for a fifteen (15) year PILOT commensurate with New York State's RPTL 487 tax exemption, with fixed PILOT Payments determined by the Agency in its sole discretion. In determining the PILOT Agreement, the Agency, may consider the total amount of power generated, stored, or transmitted by such project and the assessed value of such project.

- (F) Reduction for Failure to Achieve Goals: If the Agency's approval of a particular project is predicated upon achievement by the project of certain minimum goals (such as creating and maintaining certain minimum employment levels), the Pilot Agreement may provide for the benefits provided thereby to the project to be reduced or eliminated if, in the sole judgment of the Agency, the project has failed to fulfill such minimum goals. Except as otherwise provided by resolution of the Agency, all real estate Pilot payments are to be paid to the Receiver of Taxes for the Town for distribution to the Affected Tax Jurisdictions. Upon expiration of the Initial Period as aforesaid, the assessment of the project shall revert to a normal assessment (i.e., the project will be assessed as if the project were owned by the Applicant and not by the Agency). Also, any addition to the project shall be assessed normally as aforesaid, unless such addition shall be approved by the Agency as a separate project following notice and a public hearing as described in Section 859-a of the Act. Other than fixing the Final Assessment for the Initial Period as aforesaid, the general policy of the Agency is to not provide the Applicant and/or project occupant with any abatement, other than abatements allowed under the Real Property Tax Law.
- (G) <u>Special District Taxes</u>. As indicated above, the Agency cannot include in any exemption any special assessments and special ad valorem levies, and accordingly these amounts are not subject to abatement by reason of ownership of the Project by the Agency. The Pilot Agreement shall make this clear and shall require that all such amounts be directly paid by the Applicant and/or project occupant. However, Applicants and project occupants should be aware that the courts have ruled that an Agency-sponsored project is also eligible to apply for an exemption from special district taxes pursuant to Section 485-b of the Real Property Tax Law. If an Applicant or project occupant desires to obtain an exemption from special district taxes pursuant to said Section 485-b, it is the responsibility of the Applicant and/or project occupant to apply for same at its sole cost and expense.

- (H) <u>Payee</u>. Unless otherwise determined by resolution of the Agency, all Pilot payments payable to an Affected Tax Jurisdiction shall be assessed, billed and collected by the Receiver of Taxes for the Town. Pursuant to Section 874(3) of the Act, such Pilot payments shall be remitted to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction within thirty (30) days of receipt.
- (I) <u>Enforcement</u>. An Affected Tax Jurisdiction which has not received a Pilot payment due to it under a Pilot Agreement may exercise its remedies under Section 874(6) of the Act. In addition, such Affected Tax Jurisdiction may petition the Agency to exercise whatever remedies that the Agency may have under the project documents to enforce payment and, if such Affected Tax Jurisdiction indemnifies the Agency and agrees to pay the Agency's costs incurred in connection therewith, the Agency may take action to enforce the Pilot Agreement.
- (J) Real Property Appraisals. Since the policy of the Agency stated in subsection (C)(1) is to base the value of a project for payment in lieu of tax purposes on a valuation of such project performed by the respective Assessors, normally a separate real property appraisal is not required. However, the Agency may require the submission of a real property appraisal if (1) the Assessor of any particular Affected Tax Jurisdiction requires one or (2) if the valuation of the project for payment in lieu of tax purposes is based on a value determined by the Applicant or by someone acting on behalf of the Applicant, rather than by an Assessor of an Affected Tax Jurisdiction or by the Agency. In lieu of an appraisal, the Agency may require that an Applicant submit to the Agency and each Assessor a certified enumeration of all project costs. If the Agency requires the submission of a real property appraisal, such appraisal shall be prepared by an independent MAI certified appraiser acceptable to the Agency.
- SECTION 9. PROCEDURES FOR DEVIATION. (A) <u>General</u>. In the case where the Agency may determine to deviate from the provisions of this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section 3(C) hereof, the Agency may deviate from the provisions hereof, provided that:
  - (1) the Agency adopts a resolution (a) setting forth, with respect to the proposed deviation, the amount of the proposed Tax Exemption, the amount and nature of the proposed Pilot, the duration of the proposed Tax Exemption and of the proposed Pilot and whether or not a Tax Exemption of any kind shall be granted, (b) indicating the reasons for the proposed deviation and (c) imposing such terms and conditions thereon as the Agency shall deem just and proper; and
  - (2) as provided in Section 3(C) hereof, the Agency shall give prior written notice of the proposed deviation from this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction, setting forth therein a general description of the proposed deviation and the reasons therefor.

Whenever possible, the Agency shall give such notice to each Affected Tax Jurisdiction at least thirty (30) days prior to the consideration by the Agency of the final resolution determining to proceed with such proposed deviation from this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy.

- (B) <u>Agency-Owned Projects</u>. Where a project (1) constitutes a Non-Applicant Project, (2) is otherwise owned and operated by the Agency or (3) has been acquired by the Agency for its own account after a failure of a project occupant, such project may at the option of the Agency be exempted by the Agency from all taxes, to the extent provided in Section 874(1) and (2) of the Act.
- (C) <u>Unusual Projects</u>. Where a project is unusual in nature and requires special considerations related to its successful operations as demonstrated by appropriate evidence presented to the Agency, the Agency may consider the granting of a deviation from the established exemption policy in accordance

with the procedures provided in Section 3(B) and Section 8(A) hereof. The Agency may authorize a minimum payment in lieu of tax or such other arrangement as may be appropriate.

SECTION 10. ANNUAL ASSESSMENT POLICY. (A) The Agency shall annually assess the progress of each Project for which bonds or notes remain outstanding, or straight-lease transactions have not terminated, or which continue to receive financial assistance, or are otherwise active toward its achievement of the investment, job retention or creation, or other objectives of the active Project indicated in the active Project's application for financial assistance, or otherwise considered by the Agency in its approval of the active Project.

- (1). Field Reports To perform its assessments, the Agency shall at least annually solicit information from each active Project's representatives regarding investment, job retention or creation or other objectives of each active Project and such additional information as the Agency may find helpful in its assessment or which is required for the Agency to meet its reporting requirements under the Act. The Annual Project Information shall consist of information for the period of January 1 through December 31, except that the period for the first year of an active Project shall be the date of closing through December 31.
- (2). Remediation As part of its collection of annual Project information, staff may perform random or annual site visits of active Projects. Staff shall review the annual Project information of each active Project for completeness and, if necessary, communicate with an active Project's representatives to obtain any necessary information not initially provided. If the annual Project information demonstrates that an active Project has not met its goals, Agency staff shall meet with active Project's representatives to assess Project performance and its ability to fulfill the original Project goals (a "Project Evaluation Meeting").
- (3). Project Assessment Reporting Using the annual Project information and the findings from the Project Evaluation Meeting, if any, a written assessment shall be completed for each active Project by staff. An assessment for each active Project shall be provided annually to each member of the Agency. Each such assessment shall be completed no later than March 31 in order for the Agency to comply with its annual reporting requirements under the Act and the New York State Public Authorities Law.

SECTION 11. SUSPENSION, DISCONTINUATION, RECAPTURE OR TERMINATION OF BENEFITS POLICY. (A) The Agency has adopted this Suspension, Discontinuation or Recapture of Benefits Policy (the "Policy") in accordance with the Act and any other applicable law.

- (B). Mandatory Recapture of the New York State Portion of Sales Tax The Agency shall recapture from Applicants New York State sales tax benefits, in accordance with the provisions of the General Municipal Law, from Projects that utilized State sales tax exemptions:
  - To which the Project was not entitled;
  - In excess of the amounts authorized by the Agency;
  - For property or services not authorized by the Agency; and/or
  - For a Project that has failed to comply with a material term or condition to use the property or services in the manner required by any of the Project documents between the Applicant and the Agency.

Each of the foregoing four events are hereinafter referred to as a "State-Mandated Recapture Event". The Agency shall evaluate, annually as of December 31, or at any time information is brought to the Agency's attention, whether a State-Mandated Recapture Event has occurred.

- (C). The approving resolution(s) and Project documents granting financial assistance in the form of State sales tax exemption benefits shall include the terms and conditions of the foregoing mandatory recapture provision. Within thirty (30) days of the recapture, the recapture amount shall be remitted to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. Such remittances shall include any penalties and interest imposed by the Agency. The failure to pay over such amounts to the Agency shall be grounds for the New York State Tax Commissioner to assess and determine State sales taxes due from the Applicant under article twenty-eight of the New York State Tax Law, together with any relevant penalties and interest due on such amounts.
- (D). In order to effectuate the recapture of New York State sales tax benefits the Agency shall:
  - Keep records of the New York State and local sales tax exemptions provided to each Project, with such records available to the New York State Tax Commissioner upon request. Report within thirty days of providing any financial assistance in the form of a sales tax exemption, the Project, the estimated amount of the exemption and other information as may be required by the New York State Tax Commissioner (Form ST-60).
  - The Agency shall file an annual report with the New York State Tax Commissioner detailing its terms and conditions and its activities in recapturing any unauthorized New York State sales tax exemptions.

SECTION 12. SUSPENSION, DISCONTINUATION, RECAPTURE OR TERMINATION OF OTHER FORMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE. (A) With respect to all financial assistance other than the State portion of sales tax exemptions, the Agency shall have the right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate some or all of the financial assistance if:

- The Project utilized local sales tax exemptions for which it was not entitled, such exemptions were in excess of the amounts authorized by the Agency, and/or such exemptions were for property or services not authorized by the Agency (each, a "Local Sales Tax Benefit Violation");
- The Applicant, upon completion of the Project, fails to reach and maintain at least 85 percent of Its employment requirements for job creation and/or retention ("Job Deficit");
- The total investment actually made with respect to the Project at the Project's completion date is less than 85 percent of its investment requirement ("Investment Deficit");
- The Applicant fails to provide annually to the Agency certain information to confirm that the Project is achieving the investment, job retention, job creation, and other objectives of the Project ("Reporting Failure"); or
- There otherwise occurs any event of default under any Project document (each, an "Event of Default") or a material violation of the terms and conditions of any Project document (a "Material Violation").
- (B). The Agency shall evaluate, annually as of December 31, or at any time information is brought to the Agency's attention, whether a Local Sales Tax Benefit Violation, Job Deficit, Investment Deficit, Reporting Failure, Event of Default, or Material Violation (each a "Noncompliance Event") has occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Agency may determine whether an Event of Default has occurred pursuant to any Project document in accordance with the terms of the Project document. Prior to determining that a Noncompliance Event has occurred, the Agency may give the Applicant notice of its intent to make such determination and request the Applicant to submit a written response within 30 days for consideration.
  - (C). At the time of any Noncompliance Event, the Agency shall determine by resolution whether to

exercise its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of the financial assistance provided to a Project, and shall consider the following in making its determination:

- Whether the Applicant has proceeded in good faith;
- Whether the Project has not performed as required due to economic issues, changes in market conditions, or adverse events beyond the control of the Applicant;
- Whether the enforcement by the Agency of its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of financial assistance would create a more adverse situation for the Applicant, such as the Applicant going out of business or declaring bankruptcy, which would not occur if the Agency's rights were not exercised;
- Whether the enforcement by the Agency of its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of financial assistance would create an adverse situation for the residents of Orange County; or
- Such other criteria as the Agency shall determine is a relevant factor in connection with any decision regarding the exercise of its right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of financial assistance.
- (D). The Agency shall document its evaluation of the above criteria and based upon its evaluation, the Agency shall determine, at its sole discretion, whether to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate all or any portion of the financial assistance. The determination shall provide terms, if any, by which a Applicant may remedy any Noncompliance Event upon which the determination was based. The Applicant must submit written documentation to the Agency covering compliance with all terms and conditions of the determination in order for the Agency to consider whether to resume financial assistance to the Applicant (which will be at the Agency's sole discretion).
- (E). The Project agreement entered into between the Agency and the Applicant (the "Project Agreement") shall include the terms and conditions of the foregoing provisions. The Agency shall also include in the Project Agreement a requirement that the Applicant comply with the Agency's right to suspend, discontinue, recapture, or terminate financial assistance and that the Applicant shall repay all or a portion of the financial assistance granted by the Agency to the Applicant pursuant to any Determination.
- (F). Any such amount constituting recovered or recouped tax exemptions shall be distributed to the appropriate affected tax jurisdictions, unless agreed to otherwise by any local taxing jurisdiction.
- (G). Except as otherwise provided by the General Municipal Law, the recapture period will be the longer of: (1) the term of the Lease Agreement; or (2) five years following the Project's completion date. A Project will remain "active" for purposes of Section 874(12) of General Municipal Law and the Agency's Annual Assessment Policy during the term of the Project Agreement.
- SECTION 13. ANNUAL REVIEW OF POLICY. At least annually, in accordance with the Act, the Agency shall review this Uniform Tax Exemption Policy to determine relevance, compliance with law, effectiveness, and shall adopt any modifications or changes that it shall deem appropriate. The Executive Director shall be responsible for conducting an annual review of this tax exemption policy and for an evaluation of the internal control structure established to ensure compliance with the tax exemption policy, which review shall be submitted to the Agency for consideration by the Agency.